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25" Annual Report of the Board of
Jordan Vegetable Qil Industries Company Ltd.
For the year ending on 31 Dec. 2022

Distinguished Company Shareholders / Members of the General Assembly,

On behalf of myself, members of the board of directors, the general manager and the employees of the Company, | would
like to welcome you all to the annual general assembly meeting of the Jordan Vegetable Qil Industries Company Ltd. and
present you with the 25" Annual Report which includes a summary of the Company's work, achievements and the final
accounts for the financial year ending on 31 Dec. 2022.

Additionally, the report includes disclosure data that meets requirements of transparency and governance rules pursuant to
provisions of articles 169 and 171 of the Companies Law No. 22 for 1997/ as amended, in addition to the Company's future
plans.

Distinguished Company Shareholders,

Thisyear was atest for the company for its steadfastness in facing challenges and its strength in achieving achievements
that increase the positive results achieved for our shareholders on the one hand, and the continued achievement of
national food security on the other hand. Asfor the achievements during the year 2022, the company's management
implemented its strategic expansion plan by adding new production lines, and as a result, launching a new product (Al -
Ghazal Shortening) and offering new packaging of vegetable ghee in special bags of 350 gm with different flavors. The
company also modernized its existing production lines. And it finished the maintenance and painting works for the
factory and warehouses, and it expanded the production hall to put the new production linesinside it.

The company was able to successfully obtain two international food safety certificates (FSSC 22000) Food Safety
System Certification accredited by LSQA Middle East, which represents the highest standards for food safety systems
approved in the world, and the International Organization for Standardization (1SO 22000: 2018) food safety
management system certificate. The company, in turn, continued to renew the international quality certificates 1SO (1SO
9001: 2015) and the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP Codex Alimentarius) certificate from Lloyd's
International .

With regard to the challenges that resulted from the effects of the Russian-Ukrainian war and the effects of the COVID-
19, in addition to the economic conditions, which were represented by the high prices of raw materials such as the prices
of crude palm oils, the prices of packaging materials, the sea freight rates for oil containers arriving at the port of Agaba,
and the inability of shipping companies to reserve the containers required to load goods. This led to confusion in the
timely delivery of goods, in addition to the entry of competitive products at low prices from outside Jordan.

However, after the company went through these circumstances, it didnt stand in the way of achieving more profits, which
would bring more returns to our esteemed shareholders, as the company, represented by its honorable board of directors,
seeks dl itsto achieve the best future results.

Distinguished Company Shareholders,

Despite what has been briefly mentioned regarding the variables during 2022, your company has managed to overcome
these obstacles and difficulties as much as possible and achieved outstanding achievements by achieving a net profit
before tax of 1,103,593 JDs (One Million One Hundred Three Thousand Five Hundred Ninety Three Jds). Accordingly,
we propose a 25% dividend to shareholders.

We also promise to continue efforts in 2023 and subsequent years, leading to the company's continued growth despite the
prevailing conditions.

In conclusion, | sincerely thank the deputy and members of the board of directors for their continued support and
confidence in the management of the Jordanian vegetable oil factories company L.T.D and | also register my deep
gratitude to the executive management team who were keen to uphold the company's values in the face of unprecedented
market conditions and continued to provide the highest quality to customers and raise the value achieved by the
shareholders.

Peace, Mercy and Blessings of Allah be upon you.

Nicola Amin Shnoudi

Chairman of the Board



Summary of the Board's Report

l. Production

The amount of production for the year 2022 amounted to approximately (3654) tons of ghee, compared to (3913)
tons of ghee produced in 2021. A new product (Al-Ghazal Shortening) was launched and a new packaging of
vegetable ghee was introduced in special bags of 350 gm with different flavors. The company is still continuing
with the decision to freeze Oil production for current market conditions.

II. Sales

Total quantity of sales of ghee balance in 2022 reached almost 3,612 tonnes. Most sales went to the local
market. Value of sales in 2022 is JDs 7,694,562.

lll. Quality Certification and Systems

The company was able to successfully obtain two international food safety certificates (FSSC 22000) Food
Safety System Certification accredited by LSQA Middle East, which represents the highest standards for food
safety systems approved in the world, and the International Organization for Standardization (ISO 22000: 2018)
food safety management system certificate. The company, in turn, continued to renew the international quality
certificates 1SO (ISO 9001: 2015) and the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP Codex
Alimentarius) certificate from Lloyd's International.

The company's registration number with the US Food and Drug Administration has also been renewed for export

purposes.

IV. Financial Matters

Iltem 2022 (in JDs) 2021 (in JDs)
Sales Value 7,694,562 6,072,635
Sales Cost 5,877,756 4,186,654
Sales / Cost Ratio 76,3 % 68,9 %

Total Profit 1,816,806 1,885,981
Operations' Profit 961,008 972,268

Net Profit Prior To Tax 1,103,593 1,091,458
Net Accounts Receivables 1,124,357 945,260

It is evident that the Company continues to maintain work progress.

V. Recommendations of the Board

1) Approval of the annual report and the financial statements submitted.
2) Approval to distribute 25% dividends to shareholders.
3) Discharge from liability of Company's Board per clauses of law.

Nicola Amin Shnoudi

Chairman of the Board



Disclosure Instructions

Company's Activities:

Jordan Vegetable Oil Industries Company Ltd is a public shareholding company, established in 1953 in
Nablus as the first Arab company for the production of vegetable ghee and oils. Amman factory was created
in 1993 inside King Abdullah I Ibn Al-Hussein Industrial Estate. In 1998, Nablus factory was disconnected
from Amman factory. Each of them became independent company with JDs 3 million capital for each
factory. In 2008, the capital increased to become JDs 4 million, while the remaining capital increase was
settled during 2010. The factory produces well-known (Al-Ghazal) trademark vegetable ghee, as well as
another ghee product under the trademark of (Al-Ghazalain) with the flavor of locally home-produced ghee.
In addition to a new variety (Ghazal Shortening).

The company's buildings and facilities are situated inside the premises of King Abdullah II Ibn Al-
Hussein Industrial Estate in Sahab city.

Total number of employees and workers is 61 by the end of 2022 of all administrative, financial and
marketing specializations.

There are no branches of the company inside or outside the Kingdom.

Total investment volume is almost (JDs 8,389) Eight Million Three Hundred Eighty Nine Thousand Dinars.
Affiliated Companies:

There are no affiliated companies.

Members of the board of directors and executive management

2. A-The names of the members of the board of directors, which are gentlemen :-

No. | Member Name Position Name Of Representative
1 Al-Maseera Investment Co. Chairman Mr. Nicola Shnoudi

2 Al-Mustagbal Co. For General Investments Vice-Chairman Eng. Ahmad Sami Al-Bitar
3 Astra Investment Co. Member Eng. Mohammad Annab
4 Hajj Taher Al-Masri Co. Member Mr. Ahmad Al-Teejani

5 Mr. Nizar Tayseer Shoukeh Member

6 Eng. Haidar Fuad Al-Zubaidi Member

7 Eng. Ahmad Adnan Al-Sallakh Member

-The current committees formed by the board of directors and there have been no amendments to them
during the year 2022:-

The Committee President Member Member

Audit Committee Nizar Shoukeh Nicola Shnoudi Ahmad Al-Sallakh
Risk Mgt & Credit Committee Nizar Shoukeh Ahmad Al-Tijani Nicola Shnoudi
Nominations & Awards Committee Haidar Zubaidi Ahmad Al-Sallakh "Ahmad Sami" Al-Bitar
Governance Committee Haidar Zubaidi Nizar Shoukeh Ahmad Al-Tijani
Investment & Development Committee | Ahmad Al-Sallakh | "Ahmad Sami" Al-Bitar Mohammad Annab
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3/b-Board Members

Full name: Mr. Nicola Amin Nicola Shnoudi
Position: Board Chairman/ Representative of Al Masirah Investment
Company

Membership Date: Membership of legal person: 28 Oct. 1998
Membership of the representative: 28 Oct. 1998

Date of Birth: 1 Jan. 1945
Education : Accounting and Audit Diploma / London / on-job study, 1976
Experiences: Financial Manager, Astra Group Companies, 1978 — present

Partner, Shnoudi Establishment for General Trade

Huwait & Fasheh Co. (Certified Auditors) — Audit Team Leader, 1968-1976

Shae'r and Co. (Certified Public Auditors), senior auditor, 1976-1978
Memberships: Managing Director of several limited liability companies among which are the

following:

Al-Mutamayizah Co. for Spare Parts

Al-Tiganiyah Co. for Automotive Trade

South Agricultural Co.

Rumm Agricultural Co.

Al-Mashreq Co. for Metal Industries

The Industrial Co. for Agriculture Plastic Sheets

Al-Ittihad Co. for Metal and Engineering Industries

Full name: Eng. "Ahmad Sami" Wahib Rashid Al-Bitar A
Position: Board Vice-Chairman/ Representative of Al-Mustagbal Co. for ‘ ’ -~
General Investments
Membership Date: Membership of legal person: 28 Oct. 1998 L
Membership of the representative: 29 Jan. 2007 ‘ b & .
Date of Birth: 14 Sep. 1952
Education: M.Sc. Chemical Engineering, Jordan University, 1990
B.Sc. Chemical Engineering, Yugoslavia, 1976
Experiences: General Manager, The Industrial Co. for Agriculture Plastic, 1992-
present
Production Manager, The Industrial Co. for Agriculture Plastic, 1986-
1992

The United Co. for Planning & Engineering, 1983-1986
The Jordanian Co. for Matches industry, Factory Manager, 1977-

1983
Memberships: N/A
Full name: Eng. Mohammad Mazhar Hasan Annab
Position: Board Member/ Representative of Astra Investment Co.

Membership Date: Membership of legal person: 1 Aug. 2001
Membership of the representative: 1 Aug. 2001

Date of Birth: 11 Mar. 1958

Education: M.Sc. Civil Engineering, Ukraine, 1982

Experiences: General Manager, Mazhar Annab Co. & Partners, 1992-
present

Production and Installation Engineer, Mazhar Annab Co.
& Partners, 1986-1992

Supervising Engineer, Royal Engineering Corps, 1984-
1986 / Construction Engineer, Private Sector, 1982-1984
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Memberships Member of the board of Directors of the Jordanian
insurance company /Member of the board of Directors of
Jordan specialized investments company / Member of the
dministrative Arab Cultural Association/ Al-Raed Al-Arabi
school / Member of the board of Directors of specialized
investment and real estate development

Full name: Mr. Ahmad Mohammad Ahmad Al-Tijani
Position: Board Member/ Representative of Hajj Taher Al-Masri Co.
Membership Date: Membership of legal person: 28 Oct. 1998

Membership of the representative: 10 April 2006

Date of Birth: 4 Aug. 1962
Education: B.A. Business Administration and Operations, USA, 1985
Experiences: Chief Executive Officer, the National Co. for Health

Insurance, March 2005-present
General Manager, Arabia Drip Irrigation Co., April 2003-
Dec. 2004
Managing Director for West Bank & Gaza, Coca Cola
International, July 2000-Sep. 2002
General Manager, Agaba Co. for Vegetable Oil Refining
and Industry, 1992-2000
Al-Madar Corporation for International Marketing / Private
Sector, 1990-1992
Concepts Computer Applications / Private Sector, 1988-
1990
Assistant General Manager of German Frostal Co.
Regional Office, 1987-1988

Memberships: Member of The National Company for Health Insurance NatHealth
Member of Al-Madar International Marketing Corporation

Full name: Mr. Nizar Tayseer Saleh Shoukeh

Position: Board Member

Membership Date: Representative of Cairo Amman Bank from27/3/2010 to
15/1/2018
Independent 16 Jan. 2018

Date of Birth: 11 Aug. 1972

Education: B.A. Accountancy & Business Administration, Jordan

University, 1992
Certified Financial Analyst
Certified Public Accountant (CPA) (JCPA)

Experiences: Arab Center for Engineering Studies Group / Group Chief
Financial Officer from 10/2021 to date
Financial Manager of Sama Group for Food and Industrial
Investments, from 7/2019 to 9/2021
Cairo Amman Bank:
Deputy General Manager for Banking Services and Products,
Oct. 2004-May 2019 /Head of Financial Dept. April 2004-
Oct.2014 / Head of Risk Management, Feb. 2010-Dec. 2012
Auditor, EY, Oct. 2003-April 2004 - Auditor, Arthur Andersen,
Oct. 1992-Oct. 2002

Memberships: N/A

10
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Full name:
Position:

Membership Date:

Date of Birth:
Education:

Experiences:

Memberships:

Full name:

Position:

Membership Date:

Date of Birth:
Education:
Experiences:

Memberships:

Eng. Haidar Fuad Kazem Al-Zubaidi

Board Member

Representative of Arab Supply and Trade Company
from 22/4/2015 to 15/1/2018

Independent 16 Jan. 2018

7 June 1977

M.Sc. Chemical Engineering, McGill, Canada, 2001
B.Sc. Chemical Engineering (with honors), Surry
University, Guildford, UK, 1999

General Manager, NutriDar Company, July 2013-present
Technical Manager, Ar-Riyadh Industrial Group-Jordan,
Jan. 2002-June 2013

Member of Canadian Chemical Engineering Association

Eng. Ahmad Adnan Ahmad Al-Sallakh

Board Member

Independent 6 Mar. 2018

11 May 1968

B.Sc. Mechanical Engineering, Jordan University, 1991
Chief Executive Officer, Al-Nabeel Food Industries Co.,
2016-present

CEO, KADDB, 2011-2016

CEO, Middle East Co. for Specialized Cables, 2005-
2011

Deputy CEO, Middle Est. Co. for Specialized Cables,
2004-2005

Assistant General Manager, FINE Hygienic Paper
Industrial Co., 1996-2004

Mechanical Engineer, various companies, 1994-1996
Former Board Member Investment Committee,
Jordanian Entrepreneurship Fund Co.

Former Board Member of Arab Phoenix Holdings Co.
Member of the Jordanian Engineers Union

3/C-Names of the executive authority:-

No. | Name Position

1 Fahmi Ziyad Saifi Managing Director

2 Bilal Amin Al-Hajji Production Manager

3 Mohammad Abdallah Momneh Financial Controller & Deputy For Financial Affairs

4 Hamzeh Daoud Alrefai Admin & HR Manager From 05/11/2022

5 Ghassan Ahmad Al-Ahmad Sales & Marketing Manager

6 Zaid Ibrahim Al Kilani Warehouse Manager

7 Mohamed Abdessalam Foudeh Legal Counsel - Secretary Of The Board Of Directors
8 Dar Al-Hamad - Khaldoun Shukri Internal Auditor

11



3/d-Executive Management Staff:

Full name:
Position:
Employment Date:
Date of Birth:
Education:

Experiences:

Memberships:

Full name:
Position:
Employment Date:
Date of Birth:
Education:

Practical Experiences:

Memberships:

Full name:
Position:
Employment Date:
Date of Birth:
Education:

Practical Experiences:

Memberships:

Full name:
Position:
Employment Date:
Date of Birth:
Education:

Practical Experiences:

Full name:
Position:
Employment Date:
Date of Birth:
Education:

Practical Experiences:
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Mr. Fahmi Ziyad Fahmi Saifi

Managing Director

5 Sep 2021

8 Sep. 1975

Masters of Business Administration, University of Dallas,
USA 2004 / B.A. Public Administration, American
University of Beirut, Lebanon, 1998

Deputy Managing Director for Administrative, Commercial and Technical
Matters — Jordan Vegetable Oil Factories Company 1/6/2021 - 5/9/2021
Private Business 2019 — 2021

Business Development Manager - Abdali Investment & Development
2018 — 2019

Sales & Marketing Manager — Abdali Investment & Development 2007 —
2018

Underwriting Assistant — IGI 2005 — 2007

Marketing Executive — Nuqul Group 2000 — 2001

Financial Institutions Associate — Arab Bank 1998 — 2000

N/A

Eng. Bilal Amin Yousuf "Darweesh Al-Hajji"

Production Manager

1 Jan. 1996

30 Nov. 1954

B.Sc. Agriculture, Majoring: Food Processing, Ain Shams University, Egypt, 1980
Jordanian Company for Marketing and Processing of Agricultural Products, April 1985-May
1995

Jordan Valley Authority, Oct. 1982-April 1985

Vegetable Oil Industries Co., Nablus, Aug. 1980-Oct. 1982

Member of Jordan Agricultural Engineers Association

Mr. Mohammad Abdullah M. Mu'mnah

Financial Controller & Deputy for Financial Affairs

1 Feb. 2011

14 Mar. 1962

B.Sc. Economy and Administrative Sciences, Majoring: Accountancy, Jordan University,
1984

Jordan Certified Public Accountant (JCPA), 2005

Private Audit Office, 2007-2011

Shahin Business & Investment Group, 1993-2007

Inma Commercial and Agricultural Co., 1987-1993

Member of Jordan Certified Accountants Association (JCPA).

Mr. Hamza Daoud Abdel-Rifai

Admin & H.R Manager

5 Nov. 2022

7 Apr. 1981

Bachelor of Management Information Systems - Al Balga Applied University 2008.

Human Resources Manager - Halawanji 2021-2022.

Director of Human Resources and Administrative Affairs - International Paints Company 2016-
2021.

Human Resources Officer - Siniora Food Industries Company 2012-2016.

Assistant Director of Personnel Affairs - Shaaban Group

Mr. Ghassan Ahmad Nimr Al-Ahmad

Sales and Marketing Manager

16 Nov. 2019

26 Sep. 1960

B.Sc. Sciences / Business Administration, Charleston University, USA, 1991
Sales Manager, As-Saree' Group, Saudi Arabia, 2017-2018

Regional Manager, Newboy Co., Saudi Arabia, 2014-2016
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Full name:

Position:

Employment Date:
Date of Birth:
Education:

Practical Experiences:

Sales Manager, Arab Modern Distribution Co., 2012-2014
Sales Manager, Petra Co. for Trade & Investment, 2008-2012
Sales Manager, Coca Cola, 2005-2008

Area Manager, British American Tobacco, 1999-2005

Mr. Zaid Ibrahim Saleh Zaid Al-Kilani

Warehouse Manager

1 July. 2014

15 Jun.1959

Industry Diploma / Mechanics

Head of Warehouses Jordan Vegetable Oil industries 11/1993 - 6/2014

Jordan Company for the Marketing and Manufacture of Agricultural Products 1986-1993
Jordan Valley Authority 1983-1985

Full name: Mr. Mohammed Abdulsalam Khamis Foudeh
Position: Legal Counsel - Secretary of the Board of Directors
Employment Date: 01 Sep. 2018

Date of Birth: 21 Mar. 1985

Education:
Practical Experiences:

Bachelor of Law - Al-Bayt University 2007
Adnan Kanaan Law Office 2014-2018

Ali Tunisian Contracting Est 2012-2013
Adnan Kanaan Law Office 2008-2011

Memberships Jordanian Bar Association

-Mr. Khaldoun Shukri - Dar Al-Hamad Audit, occupies the position of the company's internal auditor from the date
of 1/11/2012. He holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics and Administrative Sciences from the University of Jordan.
- Mr. Basem Salman Ramez Kokash performs the duties of the Shareholders Liaison Officer in the company &
holds the position of Head of Information Systems & Shareholders Department.

4. a,b,c/ Below table shows list of shareholders possessing more than 5% of company's shares by the end
of 2022,2021.:

Details 2022 2021
Shareholder's Name No. Of Shares Percentage | No. Of Shares | Percentage
The Arab Co. For Supply And Trade 1,500,850 37.52% 1,500,850 37.52%
Palestine Development And Investment Co. (PADICO) 679,863 17% 679,863 17%
Mr. Sabih Taher D. Al-Masri 436,023 10.9% 436,023 10.9%
The General Corporation For Insurances And Pension 200,000 5% 200,000 5%

- The company has 980 shareholders as of December 31, 2022 and the number of fully subscribed and paid shares
is four million.

5. The company's competition within the sector during the year 2022:

a. Based on valid legislations and Free Trade Agreements, traders import canned oils and ghee from
neighbouring countries with lower prices. Therefore, competition was very severe which reflected on sales to
local factories.

b. Main local markets are wholesale traders, whereas main foreign markets are USA and the Arab Gulf States.
c. The company's share in the local market represents 50% of ghee.

d. The company's share of foreign markets represents 10% our of ghee Sales.

In spite of the above-mentioned regardingthe competitiveness status of the Company, our quality products and
Company's goodwill are guarantors for continuity of business.

13



6. Dependency on specific suppliers and/or local and foreign clients:

» Suppliers / Purchases:

MOI International (Singapore) Co. / Malaysia

NATURZ Group. / Malaysia

Southern Edible Oil Industries Co. / Malaysia

Jordan Tinplate Canning & Printing Industry Co.
Jordan Canning Industry Co.

» Customer / Sales:

Mohammad Salem Al-Taleb & Partners Co. / Distributor
Habiba Sweets Company
Civil and Military Consumer Corporations
AlMayan Food Stuffco

Al-Nejmah Sweets/ Ramadan Abu Lebbeh & Sons Co

7) a- There is currently no franchise agreement or governmental protection enjoyed by the company or any of

its products in accordance with the laws and regulations.

Per.

40%
21%
11%
4%
4%

49%
5%
5%
4%
3%

b- There are no patents or franchise rights obtained by the company.

8) a. There are no decisions issued by the government, international organizations, or others that have a material

impact on the company, its products, or its competitiveness.

b. The company was able to successfully obtain two international food safety certificates (FSSC 22000) Food
Safety System Certification accredited by LSQA Middle East, which represents the highest standards for food
safety systems approved in the world, and the International Organization for Standardization (ISO 22000: 2018)
food safety management system certificate. The company, in turn, continued to renew the international quality
certificates 1SO (ISO 9001: 2015) and the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP Codex
Alimentarius) certificate from Lloyd's International.

9.

14

a-Company Organizational Structure:

The General
Assembly

External Auditor

Board Chairman
and Members

Secretary of the
Board of
Directors

Risk Nominations & Governance Investment &
IManagement and Awards Committee Development Audit Committee
Credit Committee Committee Committee
Executive Managing Internal Auditor
Secretary | T~ Director
Laboratory & Sales & Marketi . . ial .
T e . Warehouses |  [Sales arketin Admin & H.R | | Financia | | Production
Manager Department Department Department Department
Department
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9.B) The number of employees of the company on 31 December 2022 (61) employees and workers, while the

number of employees of the company at 31/12/2021 (57) employees and workers.

9.c) Categories of qualifications of the company's employees during 2022:

Academic Qualification Number
Master’s Degree 2
University Bachelor Degree 10
Intermediate University Diploma 13
Apprenticeship Certificate 2
General Secondary Education Certificate 9

Less Than General Secondary Education Certificate 25

Total 61

9.d) Training programs for the company's employees:

Course Name Number Of Staff

Income Tax Cycle, Sales And Jordanian Legislation

Fssc22000 + Internal Audit

Health And Food Safety And HSP Instructions

Occupational Safety And Health In The Food Products Sector

Food Quality And Safety

OFRPINO|N[—

Evacuation And Extinguishing

10. Risks that the Company might be subjected to:

The Board thinks that the risks which the Company may face during the current year and next
year are the following:

a) Inability to collect some debts due to current market conditions and COVID-19 Pandemic
b) Price competiveness at local market as a result of imports from foreign markets and
benefiting from trade agreements.

c) Raw material prices and shipping costs continue to rise.

d) High prices of fuel and electricity.

11. a- The company's achievements during the year 2022, supported by numbers:

» The Company had achieved net profit during 2022 amounting to JDs 1,103,593 compared
to JDs 1,091,458 net profit in 2021.
» Operations' profits of 2022 amounting to JDs 961,008 compared to JDs 972,268 in 2021.

b- The company's expansions during 2022.

» The company implemented its strategic expansion plan by adding new production lines.

» The company has modernized its existing production lines.

» The company has purchased some industrial requirements to maintain the company's
machinery and assets.

» The company carried out maintenance and painting works for the factory and warehouses,
and expanded the production hall to put production lines in it.

» Launching a new product (Al-Ghazal Shortening).

> Introducing new packaging of vegetable ghee in special bags of 350 gm with different
flavours.

» Purchase of equipment and consumables for the laboratory department.

» Purchase of 2 saloon cars for the sales department , Purchase of 1 transport vehicle.

12. The financial impact of operations of non-recurring nature that occurred during the
fiscal year but out of Company's activities:

» - Total assets value as it appears in the Consolidated Revenues Sheet on 31 Dec. 2022 is
JDs 1,340,754.

» - Positive change of the fair value reserve resulting from re-evaluation of shares prices on
31 Dec. 2022 of JDs 66,265.

15
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13. a-The time sequence of profits and losses achieved, dividends distributed, shareholders' equity net worth

and the book value per share for a period not less than five years:

13-A 13-B 13-C 13-D

Year Profits (Losses) Dividends Net Equity Book Value Per
Before Tax (In JDS) (In JDS) Share (In JDS)

2018 969,782 20% 6,505,570 1,626

2019 1,193,995 25% 6,714,941 1,678

2020 1,173,697 25% 6,566,764 1,641

2021 1,091,458 25% 6,848,198 1.712

2022 1,103,593 25% 6,935,073 1,733

b- Profits : The Board took a decision to recommend to the General Assembly to distribute 25%
dividends of the Company's capital which is JDs 4 million as cash profits to shareholders for year

2022

14.Analysis of the company's financial position and the results of its operations during the
years 2021 and 2022:

No. Financial Percentages 2022 2021
1 Shares Trading Percentage / Time 3.68 4.26

2 Sales Cost / Sales Percentage 76.39 58.76
3 Total Profits / Sales Percentage 23.61 41.24
4 Admin Cost And Sales Cost / Sales Percentage 9.69 13.76
5 Net Profit Before Tax/ Sales Percentage 14.34 22.18
6 Goods / Total Assets Percentage 16.51 6.920
7 Net Equity / Total Liabilities And Equity Percentage 82.67 84.05
8 Ready Products Rotation Average / Time 6.42 16.10
9 Ready Products Storage Period / Day 56.87 22.67
10 Raw Material Rotation Average / Time 14.72 7.01

11 Raw Material Storage Period / Day 24.79 52.03
12 Debts Accounts Rotation Average / Time 6.33 4.28

13 Collection Period Average / Day 57.67 75.72
14 Book Value Per Share / JD 1.73 1.64

15 Return On Sales (Before Allocations And Tax) Percentage 15.77 28.91
16 Return On Assets (Before Allocations And Tax) Percentage 14.47 19.58
17 Return On Equity (Before Allocations And Tax) Percentage 17.5 23.30

15/a,b- Future Developments and Plan of the Company for one-year period minimum:

» Increasing the company's share in the market by diversifying products and creating advertising
programs.

» Conducting studies to develop the main production lines.
» Continuing to work on reducing expenses and production costs, which will reflect positively on
the company's profitability.
» Continuing to update the internal systems in force for the company to keep pace with
development.
» Continuing to update the computer hardware and software in force in the company.

15/C- The Board of Directors' expectations of the company's business results for a year:
Based on the estimated budget, it is clear that the company maintains its share of the market, and

therefore profits are expected as the company continues on the same path.

16
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16.The fees of the independent auditor of the company and its subsidiaries and the amount of any fees
for other services received by the auditor and/or due to him during the year 2022:

- The auditor's fees for the year 2022 amounted to (16,250) dinars sixteen thousand two hundred and fifty dinars,
noting that the fees referred to above are before adding the sales tax.

The auditor did not receive any fees for other services, and there are no subsidiaries with the company to be
audited by the independent external auditor.

17.a-e) Number of securities issued by the company and owned by board members during 2022, 2021

Number Of )
Shares Companies Controlled
Member Name Nationality In 2022 & 2021
2022 2021 No. Of No. Of
2022 Shares 2021 Shares
Al-Maseera . 133 133
Investment Co. Jordanian 179,400 | 179,400 | Astra Investment Co. Astra Investment Co.
Arab Co. For Supply | 100 Arab Co. For Supply | 100
And Trade And Trade
Supply Co. For Tourist 0 Supply Co. For Tourist 0
Investments Investments
Al-Maseera Co. For 0 Al-Maseera Co. For 0
Land Development Land Development
Ayla  Hotels And 0 Ayla  Hotels And 0
Resorts Co. Resorts Co.
Jordan Saudi Hotel Jordan Saudi Hotel
0 0
Co. Co.
Al-Ittihad  Co. For 0 Al-lttihad  Co.  For 0
Metal Industries Metal Industries
Represented By:
Nicola Amin Jordanian 7,944 7,944 N/A 0 N/A 0
Shnoudi
Al-Mustagbal
ﬁ\(\e/:zgﬁwlen ts Co Pale Uil gy 100 Al-Ayyam Co. For o Al-Ayyam Co. For 0
' Printing,  Publication Printing,  Publication
. And Distribution And Distribution
Represented By: N/A N/A
Ahmad Sami Jordanian N/A N/A 0 0
Waheeb Al-Bitar
Jordanian 133 133 The Industrial Co. For
éitra Investment Agricultural 0 The Industrial Co. For 0
' Plastic Agricultural Plastic
Represented By: Jordanian N/A N/A 0
Mohammad Mazhar N/A 0 N/A
Annab
i B i Jordanian 20,000 20,000
(H:gu Taher Al-Masri N/A 0 N/A 0
Represented By: Jordanian N/A N/A
Ahmad Mohammad N/A 0 N/A 0
Al-Teejani
Nizar Tayseer S. Jordanian | 100 100 | N/A 0 N/A 0
Shoukeh
Haidar Fuad K. Al- .
Zubaidi Jordanian 100 100 N/A 0 N/A 0
Ahmad Adnan A. Al- .
Sallakh Jordanian 100 100 N/A 0 N/A 0
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17-c-f) Number of Company's shares possessed by Executive Management Staff during 2021,2022:

Name Position Nationalit Number of Shares | Companies Controlled
" onality’ m2022 2021 2022 2021

Fahmi Saifi Managing Director Jordanian 0 0 N/A N/A

Bilal Al-Hajji Production Manager Jordanian 0 0 N/A N/A

Mohammad Financial Controller & Deputy .

Moumena for Financial Affairs Jordanian 0 0 N/A N/A

:ﬁr;iza Abdel- Admin & H.R Manager Jordanian 0 0 N/A N/A

Ghassan Al- . .

Ahmad Sales & Marketing Manager Jordanian N/A N/A

Zaid Al-Kilani Warehouse Manager Jordanian N/A N/A

Mohamed Legal Counsel - Secretary of .

Foudeh the board of directors Jordanian 0 0 NIA NIA

Dar al-Hamad

Khaldoun Internal Auditor Jordanian 0 0 N/A N/A

Shukri

17d-h) knowing that all senior management persons with executive authority in the company and their
wives and minor children do not own shares in the company in the years 2022 and 2021, and there are
no companies controlled by them also in the years 2022 and 2021

17-b) Number of Company's shares possessed by relatives of the Board members (wives and

minors) during 2021,2022:

Number of Companies

Name Nationality shares Controlled

2022 2021 2022 2021
Nicola Amin Shnoudi Jordanian.
Hala Yassir Bijali Jordanian. 1000 1000 N/A N/A
Ahmad Sami Wahib Al- Jordanian.
Bitar
Naila Abdelrazak Takariti Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Mohammed Muhammad Jordanian.
Annab
Nancy Nabil Baker Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Ahmed Mohammed Al- Jordanian.
Tijani
Suaad Amaddin Khalif Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Nizar Tayseer Shokheh Jordanian.
Amal Ishag Dugus Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Haya Nizar Shokeh Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Haidar Fuad Al-Zubaidi Jordanian.
Nadia Kuther Wa'iz Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Hassan Haidar Al-Zubaidi Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Maryam Haidar Al-Zubaidi Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Zahraa Haidar Al-Zubaidi Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Ahmed Adnan Al-Salakh Jordanian.
Hala Mohammed Alouran Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Nadine Ahmed Al-Salakh Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A
Adnan Ahmed Al-Salakh Jordanian. 0 0 N/A N/A

- Relatives of other board members (their wives and sons) do not own shares in the company in 2022 and 2021 and

do not have companies controlled by them either in 2022 and 2021.
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18. a) Benefits and entitlements received by Board Chairman and members 2022:

" Total Annual Annual . Annual Annual Travel Total Annual
Name Position Transportation . .
Salary-Jds Honorarium-Jds | Expense-Jds Benefits-Jds
Allowance-Jds
Nicola Shnoudi Chairman N/A 4,200 5,000 N/A 9,200
Ahmad Sami Al-Bitar Vice- N/A 4,200 5,000 N/A 9,200
Chairman
Mohammad Annab Member N/A 4,200 5,000 N/A 9,200
Ahmad Al-Tijani Member N/A 4,200 5,000 N/A 9,200
Nizar S. Shoukeh Member N/A 4,200 5,000 N/A 9,200
Haidar K. Al-Zubaidi Member N/A 4,200 5,000 N/A 9,200
Ahmad A. Al-Sallakh Member N/A 4,200 5,000 N/A 9,200
18.b) Benefits and entitlements received by staff of Executive Management 2021:
Name Position Salary Allowances | Honorarium Total
Fahmi Saifi Managing Director 46,037 - 12,000 58,037
Bilal Al-Hajji Production Manager 27,879 2,889 2,500 33,268
Mohammad Moumena | Financial Controller Deputy | 7 45, 2,889 8,000 58,343
For Financial Affairs
Hamza A-Rifai Admin & H.R Manager 3,201 399 - 3,600
Ghassan Al-Ahmad Sales & Marketing Manager 21,008 2,889 8,100 31,997
Zaid Al Kilani Warehouse Manager 19,158 2,889 2,000 24,047
Legal Counsel - Secretary
Mohamed Foudeh Of The Board Of Directors 10,680 2,025 1,500 14,205
Dar Al-Hamad '
Khaldoun Shukri Internal Auditor 6,000 - - 6,000

- Job benefits for each of the Managing director, production manager, financial controller, and sales and
marketing manager, which is a car owned by the company.

- Mr. Hamza Daoud Al-Rifai was appointed as Admin & H.R Manager from 5/11/2022.

19. Donations presented during fiscal year 2021 are detailed as follows:

No Befldfiaiar In-Kind Donations / | Cash Donation Value
) y Parcels (in JDs) (in JDs)
1 Jordan Industrial Estates Company/ Civil Society 15 - 476.00
2 The children of Jordan vally charity assocation 10 - 317.00
Total 25 -- 793.00
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20.Statement of contracts, projects and engagements concluded by the company:

a. There are no contracts, projects or engagements concluded by the company with subsidiaries, sister or allied
companies.

b. There are no contracts, projects or engagements made by the company with the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
deputy members of the Board of Directors, the general manager, senior management persons or their relatives,
companies controlled by them, or any employee in the company.

21. The company contributes to protecting the environment and serving the local community by disposing of waste by
a company specialized in this field, as well as disposing of waste water Maintaining the cleanliness of the roads and
their surroundings. The company is committed to the laws concerned with preserving the environment and creating a
work environment free of risks. The company also undertakes public safety and occupational health for all its employees
by conducting a periodic examination for them and providing them with clothes, shoes and protective supplies according
to the nature of their work.

22. The Board of Directors of the company acknowledges that there are no material matters that may affect the
continuity of the company during the following fiscal year.

23. The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial statements and providing an
effective control system in the company.

Nicola Shnoudi Ahmad Sami Al-Bitar Mohammad Annab
Board Chairman Board Vice-Chairman Member

Nizar Shoukeh Haidar Al-Zubaidi Ahmad Al-Teejani Ahmad Al-Sallakh
Member Member Member Member
s m— ) TR
~ );. /.-"?f;f — / ,,,::.f.-.-:--.'.'-':"-""'

24. We, the undersigned, acknowledge that the information and data stated in the Annual Report is correct and

true.

Nicola Shnoudi Fahmi saifi Mohammad Momneh
Board Chairman Managing Director Financial Controller
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The Annual Governance Report for 2022

Contents:

I.Details of the application of the provisions of the instructions and the rules of corporate governance (Article
17/a).

II.The names of the current and resigned members of the Board of Directors during the year 2022, and a
determination of whether the member is (executive or non-executive) (and independent or not) (Article
17/b).

I11.The names of the representatives of the legal members of the Board of Directors and a determination of
whether the representative is executive or non-executive and independent or non-independent (Article
17/C).

IV.The executive positions in the company and the names of the people who occupy them during the year
2022 (Article 17/d).

V.Memberships of the boards of directors occupied by any of the members of the board of directors in other
public shareholding companies for the year during the year 2022 (Article 17/e).

VI.The name of the corporate governance liaison officer during the year 2022 (Article 17/f).

VII.Names of the committees emanating from the Board of Directors (17/g).
VIII.The Audit Committee and a profile of its members during the year 2022 (Article 17/h).

IX.The names of the chairperson and member of each of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the
Governance Committee, and the Risk Management Committee, and the record of their meetings during
the year 2022 (17/i).

X.The number of meetings of each of the committees during the year, with a statement of the members
present. (17 /y).

X1.The number of meetings of the audit committee of the company's external auditor (Article 17)

Xll.Board of Directors meetings and record of their meetings during the year 2022 (Article 17/L)

|.Details of the application of the provisions of the instructions and the rules of corporate governance (Article 17/a).

The company is always seeking to integrate the quality of food products and take care of the dedication and
development of products that meet all the tastes of consumptions in conjunction with the development of relationships
with all the suppliers, clients and governorates on the employees of the company and their employees, and they were
the employees of the company. Rules, systems and procedures that achieve and enhance confidence in the company
and its various activities.

The Board of Directors of the company has decided to practice sound governance that enhances justice and
transparency that leads to achieving all the goals and strategies that the company aspires to and in a manner consistent
with the governance instructions of public shareholding companies issued by the Securities Commission. In terms of
its committees, its board of directors, the responsibilities of the executive management, the control environment, internal
control, and other instructions and laws that have been approved. Accordingly, the preparation of the Corporate
Governance Guide of our company, the Charter of the Audit Committee, the Charter of the Nominations and
Remuneration Committee, the Charter of the Risk and Credit Committee, the Charter of the Governance Committee,
and the Charter of the Investment and Development Committee have been completed in accordance with the
instructions of the governance of the 2017 listed companies.

Chronological disclosure:

1. - Mr. Hamza Daoud Al-Rifai was appointed as Admin & H.R Manager from 5/11/2022.
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Il The names of the current and resigned members of the Board of Directors during the year 2022 and a
determination of whether the member is (executive or non-executive) (and independent or not) (Article 17/b).

Member Name Name Of . Position Status
Representative
Al-Maseera Investment Co. Mr. Nicola Shnoudi Chairman Non-Executive Non-
Non-Independent Resigning
Al-Mustagbal Co. For General | Eng. Ahmad Sami Al- Vice- Non-Executive Non-
Investments Bitar Chairman Non-Independent Resigning
Astra Investment Co. Eng. Mohammad Member Non-Executive Non-
Annab Non-Independent Resigning
Hajj Taher Al-Masri Co. Mr. Ahmad Al-Tijani Member Non-Executive Non-
Non-Independent Resignhing
Mr. Nizar Tayseer S. Shoukeh Member Non-Executive Non-
Independent Resigning
Eng. Haidar Fuad K. Al- Member Non-Executive Non-
Zubaidi Independent Resigning
Eng. Ahmad Adnan A. Al- Member Non-Executive Non-
Sallakh Independent Resigning

* None of the board members resigned during the year 2022.

I11.The names of the representatives of the legal members of the Board of Directors and a determination of whether the

representative is executive or non-executive and independent or non-independent (Article 17/C).

Member Name Name Of . Position Status
Representative
Al-Maseera Investment Co. Mr. Nicola Shnoudi Chairman Non-Executive
Non-Independent
Al-Mustagbal Co. For General Eng. Ahmad Sami Al- Vice- Non-Executive
Investments Bitar Chairman Non-Independent
Astra Investment Co. Eng. Mohammad Annab Member Non-Executive
Non-Independent
Hajj Taher Al-Masri Co. Mr. Ahmad Al-Tijani Member Non-Executive
Non-Independent
Mr. Nizar Tayseer S. Shoukeh Member Non-Executive
Independent
Eng. Haidar Fuad K. Al-Zubaidi Member Non-Executive
Independent
Eng. Ahmad Adnan A. Al-Sallakh Member Non-Executive
Independent
IV.The executive positions in the company and the names of the people who occupy them during the year 2022 (Article
17/d).
Name Position
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Fahmi Ziyad Saifi

Managing Director

Bilal Amin Al-Hajji

Production Manager

Hamza Abdel-Rifai

Admin & H.R Manager from 5/11/2022

Mohammad Abdallah Momneh

Financial Controller , Deputy For Financial Affairs

Ghassan Ahmad Al-Ahmad

Sales & Marketing Manager

Zaid lbrahim Al Kilani

Warehouse Manager

Mohamed Abdessalam Foudeh

Legal Counsel - Secretary Of The Board Of Directors

Dar Al-Hamad - Khaldoun Shukri

Internal Auditor
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The Executive Management, led by the Managing director Mr. Fahmi Ziad Fahmi Saifi attends meetings of the Board
and the committees during the year and monitors work progress. In addition, monitor the Company financial position,

production and work flow and development of all policies of the Company.

- Mr. Mohamed Abd al-Salam Khamis Foudeh performs the duties of the Secretary of the Board of Directors, as he
records the minutes of the Board’s meetings and its decisions in a special register numbered in sequence and shows
the members present and any reservations they make (Article 17-e).

- Mr. Bassem Salman Ramez Kokash follows up on the disclosure of any substantial decisions taken by the Board of

Directors.

V.Memberships of boards of directors occupied by any of the members of the board of directors in other public

shareholding companies for the year during the year 2022 (Article 17/e).

No. | Name Position Other Memberships
1 Mr. Nicola Shnoudi Representative Of Al Masirah Chairman N/A
Investment Company
2 Ahmad Sami R. Al-Bitar Representative Of The Future Vice- N/A
Company For General Investments Chairman
3 Mohammad Annab Representative Of Astra Investment Co. | Member Jordan Insurance Co.
Jordan Co. For Specialized
Investments
4 Ahmad Al-Tijani Representative Of Al-Hajj Taher Al-Masry Member N/A
Company
5 Nizar S. Shoukeh Member N/A
6 Haidar Al-Zubaidi Member N/A
7 Ahmad Al-Sallakh Member N/A

VI.The name of the corporate governance liaison officer during the year 2022 (Article 17/f).

Mr. Basem Salman Ramez Kokash is the Governance Liaison Officer. He monitors governance affairs with Jordan

Securities Commission.

VII.The names of the committees emanating from the Board of Directors (17/g).

The Committee President Member Member

Audit Committee Nizar Shoukeh Nicola Shnoudi Ahmad Al-Sallakh
Risk Mgt & Credit Committee Nizar Shoukeh Ahmad Al-Tijani Nicola Shnoudi
Nominations & Awards Committee Haidar Zubaidi Ahmad Al-Sallakh "Ahmad Sami" Al-Bitar
Governance Committee Haidar Zubaidi Nizar Shoukeh Ahmad Al-Tijani
Investment & Development Committee | Ahmad Al-Sallakh | "Ahmad Sami" Al-Bitar | Mohammad Annab

VIIL.The Audit Committee and a profile of its members during the year 2022 (Article 17/h).

* The Audit Committee consists of Messrs.: Mr. Nizar Shoukeh as Chairman and the membership Eng. Ahmed Al-
Salakh , Mr. Nicola Shnoudi

All members of the committee have knowledge and know-how in financial and accounting matters, and we list for you

a brief summary of their experience:
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- Mr. Nizar Tayseer Shoukeh holds a Bachelor's degree in Accounting and Business Administration from the
University of Jordan 1992, Certified Analyst CFA, Certified Public Accountant JCPA/CPA, currently occupies the
position of Executive Financial Director in Arab Center for Engineering Studies Group

Eng. Ahmed Adnan Al-Salakh holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Jordan in
1991 and occupies the position of Chief Executive Officer at Nabil Food Industries Company.

- Mr. Nicola Amin Shnoudi holds a diploma in accounting and auditing from London 1976 and occupies the position of
financial manager for the Astra Investment Group.

IX. The names of the chairperson and member of each of the Nominations and Remunerations Committee, the
Governance Committee, and the Risk Management Committee during the year 2022 (17 /1)

The Committee President Member Member

Risk Mgt & Credit Committee Nizar Shoukeh Ahmad Al-Tijani Nicola Shnoudi
Nominations & Awards Committee Haidar Zubaidi Ahmad Al-Sallakh "Ahmad Sami" Al-Bitar
Governance Committee Haidar Zubaidi Nizar Shoukeh Ahmad Al-Tijani
Investment & Development Committee | Ahmad Al-Sallakh | "Ahmad Sami" Al-Bitar | Mohammad Annab

X.The number of meetings of each of the committees during the year, with a statement of the members present. (17 /y).

* The Audit Committee consists of Messrs.: Mr. Nizar Shoukeh as Chairman and the membership Eng. Ahmed Al-

Salakh , Mr. Nicola Shnoudi

- The duties of the audit committee include monitoring the safety and integrity of the company's financial statements,
developing and implementing the policy of contracting with the external auditor, ensuring its independence, and

reviewing the internal financial control systems and policies to ensure their good performance.

- The committee held four meetings during the year 2022 as follows.

Name 12/2/2022 | 16/4/2022 | 22/10/2022 | 28/12/2022 | Total Attended
Mr. Nizar Shoukeh (Head Of Present Present Present Present

Committee) Independent Member 4

Eng. Ahmad Al-Sallakh (Member) Absent Present Absent Present

Independent Member

Mr. Nicola Shnoudi (Member) Present Present Present Present 4
Non-Independent Member

e The Nominations and Rewards Committee. It consists of: Eng. Haidar Al-Zubaidi (Head of Committee), Eng.
Ahmad Al-Bitar and Mr. Ahmad Al-Sallakh (members).

-The purpose of establishing this Committee is to develop policies for Company employees, identification the needs
of qualifications needed at the executive level and staff, and special policies of honorarium, motivations and salaries
for Board members, executive staff and employees to help achieve goals of the company, taking into consideration
fairness and competitive application of strategies to attract and retain qualified and competent human resources to

achieve best results.

The Committee held two meetings during the year 2022 as follows:

Name 22/10/2022 27/11/2022 Total Attended
Eng. Haidar Al-Zubaidi (Head Of Present Present 2

Committee) Independent Member

Eng. Ahmad Sami Al-Bitar (Member)

Non-Independent Member Present Present 2

Eng. Ahmad Al-Sallakh (Member) Absent Present 1

Independent Member

The Governance Committee. It consists of: Eng. Haidar Al-Zubaidi (Head of Committee), Mr. Ahmad Al-Teejani and

Mr. Nizar Shoukeh (members).

-This Committee ensures Company's compliance with laws and regulations of Ministry of Industry & Trade, Jordan
Securities Commission and any other related institution, verifies and updates rules and policies in accordance with
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regulatory requirements showing best practices. Furthermore, the Committee develops professional code of ethics
that reflect values of the Company as well other procedures to ensure meeting need of the company, and it informs
the board on recent updates in the scope of corporate governance.

e The Committee held two meetings during the year 2022 as follows:

Name 18/10/2022 28/12/2022 Total Attended
Eng. Haidar Al-Zubaidi (Head Of Committee)
Present Present 2
Independent Member
Mr. Ahmad Al-Tijani (Member)
Non-Independent Member Present Present 2
Mr. Nizar Tayseer Shoukeh (Member) Present Present >
Independent Member

e The Risk and Credit Management Committee is composed of the following: Mr. Nizar Shoukeh as Chairman ,
Mr.Nicola Shnoudi , Mr. Ahmed Al-Tijani as members.

-The objective of forming the Credit and Risk Management Committee is to assist the company's board of directors
in carrying out its responsibilities and obligations with regard to identifying, analyzing, evaluating and managing all
the risks that the company faces in its operations, which may have a negative impact on the assets and liabilities
and on the company's workflow, including those Risks that do not seem at first glance unlikely or even excluded,
and therefore the independence and impartiality of the Risk Committee must be maintained at all times.

- The committee held four meetings during the year 2022 as follow:

Name 15/1/2022 | 18/6/2022 8/12/2022 | 20/12/2022 | Total Attended
Mr. Nizar Shoukeh (Head Of

Committee) Present Present Present Present 4

Independent Member

Mr. Nicola Shnoudi (Member) Present Present Present Present 4
Non-Independent Member

Mr. Ahmad Al-Tijani (Member) Present Present Present Present 4

Non-Independent Member

1. The Investment and Development Committee. It consists of: Eng. Ahmad Al-Sallakh (Head of Committee), Eng.
Mohammad Annab and Eng. Ahmad Al-Bitar (members).

This Committee is established to support the Board in the field of investments locally and worldwide. As JVIO Co. is a
public shareholding company, it is evident that such committee is important for its work and to achieve other financial
tasks which are necessary for the success and progress of the Company. A code was prepared for this Committee
listing its tasks and functions. In addition, the Code identifies cases where the Committee is authorized by the Board
to take appropriate decisions. The key role of the committee is issuing recommendations to the Board for decision
taking. This Code is considered an authorization by the Board to perform accordingly.

-The committee held two meetings during the year 2022, as follow :

Name 14/3/2022 | 24/4/2022 Total Attended
Eng. Ahmad Al-Sallakh (Head Of Committee)
Present Present 2
Independent Member
Eng. Mohammad Annab (Member)
Non-Independent Member Present Present 2
Eng. Ahmad Sami Al-Bitar (Member)
Non-Independent Member Present Present 2
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XI.The number of meetings of the audit committee of the company's external auditor (Article 17/k).

- The number of meetings of the Audit Committee with the external auditor (Messrs. Ernst & Young) during the year
2022 was one meeting.

The number of meetings of the Audit Committee with the internal auditor (Dar Al-Hamad Auditing) during the year
2022 reached two meetings.

XII.The meetings of the Board of Directors and their attendance record during the year 2022 (Article 17/L).

In order to enhance its role and responsibilities, the Board of Directors held (9) nine meetings during the year 2022 as

follow:-
Series of Meetings and Dates in 2022
N N N N N N N N N
(&) (&) [aN] N (aN} (aN} (aN) N AN
N O N O N O N O N O N O N O N O N O
Member Name g9gg 89/ g99 /988189 (898189(98| , Tota
S8 | a8 (83| 98|98 |95 | 98| 93| 99 | Attended
= ~ N ~ P~ ~ s ~ B ~ > ~ = ~ 3 ~ 3 ~
SR NR | 9| TR | P | 98 | N | 9] | 9
— N — N — N (@] N N
Nicola Shnoudi / Non- = = = = = = = = =
independent member - @ @ @ 2 @ @ 2 b ? 9
Representative of Al Masirah o o g g g g e g g
Investment Company e e e o o o o o o
Ahmad Sami Al-Bitar
Non-independent member - S S S S S S S S S
Representative of the Future @ @ é @ @ @ @ a @ 9
Company for General a a a a a o a a a
Investments
Non-independent member - Q Q o o o o o o o 8
Representative of Astra o o o Qo g o o o o
Investment Company o o o o o e o e
Ahmad Al-Tijani = = = = = = = = =
Non-independent member - e e a Q Q o Q Q @ 9
Representative of Al-Hajj g g < g g g g o g
Taher Al-Masry Company o o o o o o o o o
. € € 1< 1< € = € = =
Nizar Shoukeh @ @ o o @ 8 b b ? 9
Independent member o o o o o o @ o Q
o o o o o o o a o
. . = = 1< I € € € € =
Haidar Al-Zubaidi @ @ o 2 2 ® 2 2 3 9
Independent member o o o o o o} @ o @
o o o o o o o a o
1= 1< 1< I = I < = =
Ahmad Al-Sallakh g Q Q Q o o o o o 6
Independent member o o o o Q o} @ a @
< o o o < o o < o

The Board Chairman acknowledges that all information mentioned in the Governance Report is correct and complete.

Nicola Amin Shnoudi

Chairman of the Board

\
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Jordan Vegetable Olls Industries Company

Amman - Jordan

the Audit of n

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Jordan Vegetable Oils Industrios Company (the
Company). which comorise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
statemen! of income, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes Lo the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In cur opinion, the accompanying financial statements present faly, in all material respacts, the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and Its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We cenducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under these standards, are further descriped in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountanis (IESBA Coda) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audil of the financial statements In Jordan, and we have fufilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit maiters are those matters that, In our professional jJudgment. were of most significance
In our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 31 Decembear 2022, These malters
wero addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion theracn, and we do net provide 3 separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter provided In that context,

A A TR CE B A Y g Gaod ! Unelod
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We have fulfiled the responsitalities described in the Auditor's respensibdities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report, including in relation 1o these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procadures designad to respond to our aasassment of Lhe risks
of matarial misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our aude procedures, including
the procedwes performaed to address the matlers below, provide the basis for our audi opnicn

on the accompanying financial staterments,

Key Audit matter

Revenues ara mamnly generated from the sale
of vegelabie olia and margarine products o
customers. VWe focused on this area because
there is a nsk tha: related to the issuance of
the inveice ano revenue racogniton before
dekvering the products or delivered but the
Invecice Ig not issued or recorded. Hence will
result in an overstatement or understatement
of revenue.

Disclosures of recogniton of revenue are
detailed in note (2-4) and nota (12) to the
financial statements

]
How the key audit matter was addressed

in the sudit

We testec {he key internal controls on the
timing and approval of revenue recogniton.
Our audit procedures included. amongst
others, lesting sales transactions taking place
before or after the culoll date ass of 31
December 2022 tc assess whether those
transachons were recognized in the correct
year, In additon. we pedformed detailed
analytical procedures for the gross margin on
a manthly basia for each main product. We
also tested key customers confirmaticns and
reconchations and manual journal entries

postad to ensure that revenue oumals were
approved and comroborated with supporiing
avidence.

Other information included in the Company’s 2022 annual report.

Other Information consists of the information Included in the Company’s 2022 Annual Report other
than the financial statements ana our auditor's repert thereon. Management is responsible for the
other Infermation. The Compary's 2022 Annual Repart Is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor's report,

Qur opnion on the financial statements doea net cover the other information and we will nat
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it bacomes avallable and, In doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our xnowlecge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materdaly missiated.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statemeants

Management is responsible for the praparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
o enable the preparation of Fnancial stataments that are free from material misstatemeant,
whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statemeonts, management is responsibie for assessing the Company's
akility to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess managemant either ntends 1o liquidate
the Caompany or to cease oparations, or has no realistic atternative but te do s0.

These charged with governancs are responsitie for averseeing the Company's finencial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements as a
whole are free from material misstaternent, whelher due to fraud or error, and to Issue an audior's
regort that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guareniee that an audit conductad
in accordance win ISAs will always detact a material misstatamant when it exist. Misstataments
¢an arise from fraud or error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably ba axpected Lo influence the cconomic decisions of ussrs taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audht In accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maistain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» Identdy and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks. and
odtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not cdetecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud ia higher than for one
resulling from error, as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intenticnal omissions,
misrepresantaticna, or the override of intemal centrol.

« Oblain an understanding of intermal controf relevant o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are approprate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprossing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal contro!
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« Evatuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management,

« Concluds on the appropriataness of mansgement's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audil evidence obtaned, whether a material uncertainty exisis
related lo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abilkty to
contine as a going concarmn. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exist. we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 1he financlel statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify cur opinion, Our conclusions are based on
the audit eviderce obtained up to Ihe date of our auditor's report. However future evenis or
conditions may cause the Company 10 cease to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the oversll presemation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including
the disclosures, and whather the financial statements regresent the underlying transacticns
and avanis In a manner that achéeves lar presantation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audt findings. including any significant
deficiencies in interal control that we identify during eur audit

We also provige those charged with governance with a statement that we have compliad with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence. and to communicats with them alf
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where appicsble, ralated safeguards,

From the malters communicated with those charged with governance, we detemine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period,
and are therefore the key audit matlers, We describe these matters in our auditor's report, uniess
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the mattar or when, in exiremely rare
circumstancas, we determine that a matter should net be communicated in our repent because
fhe adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public
Intarest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Tha company maintains proper books of accounts, which are in agreement with the financiat
statements

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this audior's report was Osama Shakhatreh, license

number 1079, NG
you
Amman — Jerdan ER:S“: -3

26 January 2023
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JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

ASSETS

Non-current assets -

Property and equipment

Investment properties

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Current assets -
Inventory
Accounts receivable and other current assets

Cash on hand and at banks

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity -

Paid in capital
Statutory reserve
Fair value reserve
Retained earnings

Total Equity

Current liabilities -

Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Due to related parties

Income tax provision
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Notes

~

(0]

11

20
17

2022 2021
JD JD

1,252,487 1,072,984
452,715 459,839
1,340,754 1,274,489
3,045,956 2,807,312
1,384,728 1,482,816
1,124,357 945,260
2,833,889 2,939,441
5,342,974 5,367,517
8,388,930 8,174,829
4,000,000 4,000,000
1,000,000 1,000,000
56,286 (9,979)
1,878,787 1,858,177
6,935,073 6,848,198
1,325,092 1,230,444
64,709 54,406
64,056 41,781
1,453,857 1,326,631
8,388,930 8,174,829

The attached notes from 1 to 25 form part of these financial statements



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
STATEMENT OF INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Sales

Less: Cost of Sales -

Finished goods- beginning balance
Cost of goods manufactured and purchased

Finished goods- ending balance

Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Legal Provision

Allowance for expected credit losses
Recovery for slow moving inventory

Operating Profit

Finance cost
Other Income

Gain on sale of property and equipment
Profit for the year before income tax

Income tax

Profit for the year

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Notes

12

13

14
15

16

17

18

2022 2021
JD JD
7,694,562 6,072,635
466,804 135,644
6,093,415 4,517,814
(682,463) (466,804)
5,877,756 4,186,654
1,816,806 1,885,981
(261,486) (228,438)
(484,311) (500,276)
(50,001) (100,000)
(60,000) (99,999)
- 15,000
961,008 972,268
(1,301) (1,090)
140,651 120,280
3,235 -
1,103,593 1,091,458
(82,983) (54,902)
1,020,610 1,036,556
Fils/ JD Fils/ JD
0/26 0/26

The attached notes from 1 to 25 form part of these financial statements



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income items:

Other comprehensive income which will not be
reclassified to the statement of income in subsequent
periods:

Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive income items which will
not be reclassified to the statement of income in
subsequent periods, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

2022 2021
JD JD
1,020,610 1,036,556
66,265 244,878
66,265 244,878
1,086,875 1,281,434

The attached notes from 1 to 25 form part of these financial statements



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Balance as at 1 January 2022

Total other comprehensive income for the year
Dividends (note 21)

Balance as at 31 December 2022

Balance as at 1 January 2021

Total other comprehensive income for the year
Dividends (note 21)

Balance as at 31 December 2021

Paid in Statutory Fair Value Retained
capital Reserve Reserve Earnings Total
JD JD JD JD JD
4,000,000 1,000,000 (9,979) 1,858,177 6,848,198
- - 66,265 1,020,610 1,086,875
- - - (1,000,000) (1,000,000)
4,000,000 1,000,000 56,286 1,878,787 6,935,073
4,000,000 1,000,000 (254,857) 1,821,621 6,566,764
- - 244,878 1,036,556 1,281,434
- - - (1,000,000) (1,000,000)
4,000,000 1,000,000 (9,979) 1,858,177 6,848,198

The attached notes from 1 to 25 form part of these financial statements



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year before income tax
Adjustments: -
Depreciation 3,4
Gain on sale of property and equipment 3
Allowance for expected credit loss 7

Finance cost

Interest income

Recovery for slow moving inventory 6
Legal provision

Working capital changes:

Inventory

Due to related parties

Accounts receivable and other current assets
Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Income tax paid 17
Net cash flows from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment 3
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 3
Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Finance cost paid
Dividends paid
Cash flows used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 9

2022 2021
JD JD
1,103,593 1,091,458
114,403 102,688
(3,235) -
60,000 99,999
1,301 1,090
(54,025) (47,290)
- (15,000)
50,001 100,000
98,088 (926,813)
10,303 20,434
(239,097) 78,223
38,163 (38,076)
(60,708) (67,271)
1,118,787 399,442
(286,782) (166,261)
3,235 -
54,025 47,290
(229,522) (118,971)
(1,301) (1,090)
(993,516) (989,853)
(994,817) (990,943)
(105,552) (710,472)
2,939,441 3,649,913
2,833,889 2,939,441

The attached notes from 1 to 25 form part of these financial statements



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

(1) GENERAL

Jordan Vegetable Oils Industries (the Company) was established in 1953 and registered as a Public
Shareholding Company with an authorized and paid capital of JD 500,000 divided into 500,000
shares at par value of JD 1 each. The Company increased its paid in capital through the years to
become JD 4,000,000 in 2010 divided into 4,000,000 shares at par value of JD 1.

The Company's main activity is to produce vegetable oils and other related and complimentary
products.

The financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Company’s board of directors in its
meeting held on 21 January 2023 and it is subject to the approval of the general assembly.

(2-1) BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income that have been measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar, which represents the functional currency
of the Company.

(2-2) SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those
used in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
except for the adoption of new amendments on the standards effective as of 1 January 2022 shown
below:

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to IFRS 3

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the
Conceptual Framework. The amendments are intended to replace a reference to the Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, issued in 1989, with a reference to
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements.

The Board also added an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of
potential ‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately.



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

At the same time, the Board decided to clarify existing guidance in IFRS 3 for contingent assets
that would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements.

These amendments had no material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16

In May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use,
which prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment,
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, in
profit or loss.

These amendments had no material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to IAS 37
In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 to specify which costs an entity needs to
include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making.

The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. The costs that relate directly to a contract
to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly
related to contract activities. General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards — Subsidiary as a
first-time adopter

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process, the IASB issued an
amendment to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards. The
amendment permits a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts reported by the parent, based on the parent’s
date of transition to IFRS. This amendment is also applied to an associate or joint venture that
elects to apply paragraph D16(a) of IFRS 1.

The amendments is not applicable to the Company.



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments — Fees in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial
liabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the IASB issued
amendment to IFRS 9. The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of
the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received by the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An
entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.

These amendments had no material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process, the IASB issued
amendment to IAS 41 Agriculture. The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of
IAS 41 that entities exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring the fair value of assets within
the scope of IAS 41.

An entity applies the amendment prospectively to fair value measurements on or after the beginning
of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with earlier adoption
permitted.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(2-3) Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of financial assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities. These estimates and assumptions also affect the revenues and expenses and
the resultant provisions. Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provisions required. Such
estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving varying degrees
of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes in such
provisions.



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Judgments, estimates and assumptions in the financial statements are detailed below:

- An allowance for expected credit loss is estimated by the management based on their principles
and assumptions according to International Financial Reporting Standards.

- The financial year is charged with its related income tax in accordance with regulations.

- The management periodically reviews the useful lives of property and equipment in order to
calculate the annual depreciation expense on the general conditions of the property and
equipment and estimate the future useful lives accordingly. Any impairment losses of property
and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

- Legal provisions are provided for lawsuits raised against the Company based on the Company’s
legal advisor opinion.

- Real estate investments are shown at cost after deducting accumulated depreciation. Real estate
investments (excluding lands) are depreciated using a straight-line method over their expected
life.

(2-4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Property and equipment -

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets using
annual depreciation rates ranging from 1% to 33%.

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events and
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indications exist and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the
assets are written down to their recoverable amounts.

The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the method and
period of depreciation are consistent with the excepted pattern of economic benefits from items of
property and equipment.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Investment Properties

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and are depreciated
(excluding land) using the straight-line depreciation method over the estimated useful life at a rate
of 2.5%.

Investments properties are written off upon their disposal or retirement. Gains or losses arising from
the disposal are recognized in the statement of income.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

These financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at fair value. The change in fair value of those assets is presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within equity, including the change in fair value resulting from
the foreign exchange differences of non-monetary assets. In case those assets — or part of them —
were sold, the resultant gain or loss is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income within
equity and the fair value reserve for the sold assets is directly transferred to the retained earnings
and not through the statement of income.

These financial assets are no longer subject to impairment testing and dividends are recognized in
the statement of income.

Inventory
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Raw materials— purchase cost on weighted average basis.

Finished goods and work in progress — cost of direct materials and labor depreciation and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at original invoice amount less any allowance for any uncollectible
amounts, the Company applies the standard’s simplified approach and calculates ECL based on
lifetime expected credit losses. The Company establishes a provision matrix that is based on the
Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For cash flow purpose cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with banks and financial
institutions maturing within three months, less bank overdrafts and restricted funds.

Accounts payable and accruals

Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received,
whether billed by the supplier or not.



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Projects under construction

Projects in progress are shown at cost and include the cost of construction, equipment and direct
expenses. Projects under implementation are not depreciated until they are ready for use.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
arising from a past event and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be
reliably measured.

Revenues and expenses recognition

The revenues are recognized in accordance with the five steps model of IFRS 15 which includes
that identification of the contracts and price, the performance obligation within the contract and that
revenue is recognized when the company satisfies the performance obligation. The company
concludes the revenues from the sale of goods and issuance of the invoice at the point in time.
Rent revenues are recognized over the rent contract period using straight line method.

Interest revenue are recognized on an accrual basis.

Other revenues are recognized on an accrual basis.

Expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date.

All differences are taken to the statement income.

Income taxes

The income tax provision is calculated in accordance with the Income Tax Law No. 38 of 2018 and
IAS 12.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either, in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

-6-



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy
by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on
current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period

Or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- ltis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

7-



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

(3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2022 -
Cost

Balance as at 1 January 2022
Additions
Disposals

Balance as at 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation -

Balance as at 1 January 2022
Depreciation charge for the year
Disposals

Balance as at 31 December 2022

Net book value-
At 31 December 2022

Office
Tools and  Furniture and  equipment and Projects in
Lands Buildings Machinery equipment fixtures Computers Vehicles progress Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
285,272 1,455,880 5,388,438 132,411 165,892 255,352 299,544 - 7,982,789
- 53,032 165,648 2,883 5,819 2,560 56,840 - 286,782
; - - - - (36,843)  (3,200) - (40,043)
285,272 1,508,912 5,554,086 135,294 171,711 221,069 353,184 - 8,229,528
- 1,170,768 5,093,882 91,592 160,721 220,359 172,483 - 6,909,805
- 38,535 27,817 1,321 1,409 11,929 26,268 - 107,279
- - - - - (36,843) (3,200) - (40,043)
- 1,209,303 5,121,699 92,913 162,130 195,445 195,551 - 6,977,041
285,272 299,609 432,387 42,381 9,581 25,624 157,633 - 1,252,487




JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

2021 -
Cost

Balance as at 1 January 2021
Additions
Transfers

Balance as at 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation -

Balance as at 1 January 2021
Depreciation charge for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2021

Net book value-
At 31 December 2021

Office
Tools and  Furniture and  equipment and Projects in
Lands Buildings Machinery equipment fixtures Computers Vehicles progress Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
285,272 1,292,992 5,241,734 119,166 164,432 251,864 281,352 179,716 7,816,528
- 6,528 62,380 13,245 1,460 3,488 18,192 60,968 166,261
- 156,360 84,324 - - - - (240,684) -
285,272 1,455,880 5,388,438 132,411 165,892 255,352 299,544 - 7,982,789
- 1,125,480 5,070,398 90,995 159,472 211,358 156,538 - 6,814,241
- 45,288 23,484 597 1,249 9,001 15,945 - 95,564
- 1,170,768 5,093,882 91,592 160,721 220,359 172,483 - 6,909,805
285,272 285,112 294,556 40,819 5,171 34,993 127,061 - 1,072,984




JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

(4) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2022 -
Cost -

Balance as at 1 January 2022
Balance as at 31 December 2022

Accumulated depreciation -
Balance as at 1 January 2022

Depreciation charge for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2022

Net book value as at 31 December 2022

2021 -
Cost -

Balance as at 1 January 2021
Balance at 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation -
Balance as at 1 January 2021

Depreciation charge for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2021

Net book value as at 31 December 2021

Land Buildings Total
JD JD JD
284,616 270,081 554,697
284,616 270,081 554,697
- 94,858 94,858
- 7,124 7,124
- 101,982 101,982
284,616 168,099 452,715
284,616 270,081 554,697
284,616 270,081 554,697
- 87,734 87,734
- 7,124 7,124
- 94,858 94,858
284,616 175,223 459,839

The fair value of investment properties is not materially different from its book value, the fair value

of investment properties were estimated at 474,790 JD as at 31 December 2022.

-10-



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

(5) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

This item represents the Company’s investments in the stocks of the following companies:

Amman Stock Exchange -
Cairo Amman Bank

Bank of Jordan

Arab Bank

Palestine Stock Exchange -

Arab Palestinian Investment Company
Paltel Group for Telecommunication
Arkaan Real Estate

Safa Bank

The movement on fair value reserve is as follows:

Balance as at 1 January
Change in fair value

Balance as at 31 December

(6) INVENTORY

Raw and packaging materials
Finished goods

Spare parts

Goods in transit

Less: provision for raw materials and slow-moving spare

parts

-11-

2022 2021
JD JD
85,122 88,298

148,357 142,176
698,152 699,583
931,631 930,057
98,694 82,637
254,820 261,795
52,545 -
3,064 -
409,123 344,432
1,340,754 1,274,489
2022 2021
JD JD
(9,979) (254,857)
66,265 244,878
56,286 (9,979)
2022 2021
JD JD
700,689 655,900
682,463 466,804
191,576 193,691
- 356,421
(190,000) (190,000)
1,384,728 1,482,816




JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

The movement on the provision for raw materials and slow-moving spare parts is as follows:

Balance as at 1 January
Recovery for the year
Balance as at 31 December

(7) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables
Less: allowance for expected credit losses

Checks under collection
Employees receivables
Prepaid expenses
Refundable deposits
Advances to suppliers
Accrued revenue

Social Security deposits
Income tax deposits

As of 31 December 2022, trade receivables at nominal value of JD 780,145 were impaired (2021: JD

720,145).

2022 2021
JD JD
190,000 205,000
- (15,000)
190,000 190,000
2022 2021
JD JD
1,078,292 1,143,397
(780,145) (720,145)
298,147 423,252
778,474 475,371
5,561 5,402
20,324 24,628
7,045 7,045
6,445 4,080
2,064 352
26 1,091
6,271 4,039
1,124,357 945,260

The movement on allowance for expected credit losses is as follows:

Balance as at 1 January
Allowance for the year
Balance as at 31 December

2022 2021
JD JD
720,145 620,146
60,000 99,999
780,145 720,145

-12-



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

(8) EQuUITY
Paid in capital -

The Company’s authorized and paid in capital is JD 4,000,000 as at 31 December 2022 divided into
4,000,000 shares at a par value of JD 1 each.

Statutory reserve -

This amount represents appropriations at 10% of net income before income tax during this year and
prior years. This reserve is not available for distribution to the shareholders. Moreover, transfers
cannot be stopped before the statutory reserve reaches 25% of the Company’s authorized capital.
However, if the General Assembly approves, transfers can be continued until the statutory reserve
reaches the authorized capital. The company decided to suspend financing to the statutory reserve
account, as the total statutory reserve amounted to 25% of the authorized capital.

(9) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The cash and cash equivalents that appear in the statement of cash flows represent the following:

2022 2021
JD JD
Cash on hand 3,093 1,800
Cash at banks 1,546,603 1,174,404
Bank deposits* 1,284,193 1,763,237
2,833,889 2,939,441

* This represents deposits at Banks, its interest matures on from one to three-month basis at a rate of
4.75% (2021:3.25% to 3.5%) for deposits in JOD per annum.

(10) UNUTILIZED CREDIT FACILITIES

The details of the Company’s unutilized credit facilities as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

- Overdraft from the Arab Bank with a ceiling of JD 700,000 and an interest rate of 9.25% (2021
9.25%).
- Deferred letter of credit, from the Arab Bank with a ceiling of JD 250,000.

13-



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY
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(11)  AcCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Dividends payable
Accrued expenses
Provision for lawsuits

Provision for end of service

Income tax deposits
Sales tax deposits
Social security deposits
Postdated checks
Others

12 SALES
2022 Sectors-

Type of goods-
Sale of margarine

Total revenue

Geographical markets-
Local sales
Foreign sales

Total revenue

2022 2021
JD JD

78,076 73,924
133,354 126,870
41,540 51,424
781,597 731,596
82,661 71,658
7,984 4,350
41,807 35,487
8,614 8,257
93,594 80,878
55,865 46,000
1,325,092 1,230,444

31 December 2022

Margarine

JD

7,694,562

7,694,562

7,147,492
547,070

7,694,562

-14-
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2021 Sectors-

Type of goods-
Sale of margarine

Total revenue

Geographical markets-
Local sales
Foreign sales

Total revenue

(13) PRODUCTION AND PURCHASING COST

Raw and packaging materials used in production
Salaries and wages

Social security contribution

Medical expenses

Depreciation

Maintenance and repairs

Cleaning costs

Electricity, water and fuel

Insurance

Others

-15-

31 December 2021

Margarine
JD

6,072,635

6,072,635

5,721,299

351,336

6,072,635

2022 2021
JD JD

5,640,694 4,143,950
234,606 209,853
25,150 22,400
14,465 9,444
67,601 59,387
40,211 10,138
4,044 3,104
28,947 20,958
4,106 4,074
33,591 34,506
6,093,415 4517,814
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(14) SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Vehicles expenses

Social security contribution
Commissions
Depreciation

Medical expenses

Export sales expenses
Banks commissions
Sample testing expenses
Advertising and promotion
Tender fees

Others

(15) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and wages

Social security contribution
Medical expenses
Stationary

Depreciation

Post and telephone

Board of directors’ remuneration and

transportation

Professional and consulting fees
Legal fees

Memberships and subscriptions
Vehicles expenses

Others

2022 2021

JD JD
161,731 144,810
29,582 21,781
14,351 16,476
15,708 8,822
8,636 8,602
10,256 7,379
1,910 2,740
2,283 1,920
427 1,736
4,379 1,766
2,488 585
9,735 11,821
261,486 228,438

2022 2021

JD JD
267,675 265,970
26,917 27,966
7,422 29,585
1,112 1,130
38,166 34,699
3,407 3,341
64,400 64,400
33,746 29,919
279 109
11,252 16,549
10,681 10,509
19,254 16,099
484,311 500,276
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(16) OTHER INCOME

2022 2021
JD JD
Interest on bank deposits 54,025 47,290
Dividends income 68,352 48,954
Rent income - 15,000
Storage and scrap income 18,274 9,036
140,651 120,280

(17) INCOME TAX

The income tax provision was calculated for the year ended 31 December 2022 in accordance with
Income Tax Law No. (38) of 2018.

The Company reached a final settlement with the Income Tax Department up to the year 2018.

Starting from 1 January 2019, the company has registered in the General Sales Tax Network in
accordance to the Investment Commission Law No. (30) of 2014 as an institution in the development
zones. Tax is imposed on the income of the institution registered in the Development Zones arising
from transformational industrial activities with a total local value-added of at least (30%) at a rate of
(5%) plus (1%) “National Solidarity” contribution a total of (6%).

A summary of the reconciliation between taxable profit and accounting profit is as follows:

2022 2021
JD JD
Accounting profit 1,103,593 1,091,458
Add: Nondeductible expenses 121,000 128,613
Deduct: exempted revenues 51,263 90,924
Deduct: bad debt expenses - 305,016
Taxable Profit 1,173,330 915,049
Income tax for the year 82,983 54,902
Effective Income tax rate 7,5% 5%
Statutory income tax rate 6% 6%
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The movement on income tax provision is as follows:

2022 2021
JD JD
Balance as at 1 January 41,781 54,150
Income tax expense for the year 82,983 54,902
Income tax paid (60,708) (67,271)
Balance as at 31 December 64,056 41,781
(18) EARNINGS PER SHARE

2022 2021
Profit for the year (JD) 1,020,610 1,036,556
Weighted average number of shares (shares) 4,000,000 4,000,000
Basic Earnings per share (JD/ fils) 0/26 0/26

Diluted earnings per share equals the basic earnings per share.

(19) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Guarantees —

As at 31 December 2022, the Company has contingent liabilities which are represented in letter of

guarantees with an amount of JD 73,000 (2021: JD 127,300).

Lawsuits against the company —

The company is a defendant in a case valued at JD 150,000. According to the opinion of the
company's management and legal advisor, the allocation taken for these cases is sufficient to meet
the obligations that may arise.

A decision from the federal court of the Republic of Irag to compel the Company to pay JD 631,597
to the General Company for Food Trading, the Company was notified of this decision on 28 March
2017. The management and legal advisor believe that the provision recorded for this lawsuit is
sufficient to meet the obligations that may arise. The Company has fully provided against this lawsuit.
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Lawsuits raised by the company -

As at 31 December 2022 lawsuits raised by the Company amounted to JD 1,982,778 (2021: JD
1,982,778) representing accounts receivable, and returned checks related to its ordinary course of
business.

(20) RELATED PARTIES

Related parties represent sister companies, major shareholders and key management personnel of
the Company and other companies where the directors or senior managers are principal owners.

Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Company’s management.

A summary of related party balances as shown in the statement of financial position:

2022 2021
JD JD
Due to related parties
Vegetable Oils Industries Co. Ltd. — Nablus (Company
owned by a major shareholders) 64,709 54,406
64,709 54,406

Balances with related parties arise from normal operations and are not subject to interest.

A summary of related party balances as shown in the statement of income:

Raw materials purchases 2022 2021

JD JD
Vegetable Oils Industries Co. Ltd. — Nablus (Company
owned by a major shareholders) 109,600 29,280
Board of directors’ transportation and remuneration 64,400 64,400
Salaries and benefits 225,896 280,611
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(21) DIVIDENDS

The General assembly approved in its ordinary meeting held on 24 March 2022 to distribute cash
dividends for the year 2021 with a percentage of 25% from paid in capital.

The General assembly approved in its ordinary meeting held on 20 March 2021 to distribute cash
dividends for the year 2020 with a percentage of 25% from paid in capital.

(22)  RISK MANAGEMENT

Interest rate risk -
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on its assets which are bearing interest such as bank
deposits.

The sensitivity of the statement of comprehensive income is the effect of the assumed changes in
interest rates on the Company’s profit for one year based on the floating rate financial assets as at
31 December 2022 and 2021.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the statement of comprehensive income to
reasonably possible changes in interest rates as at 31 December 2022 and 2021, with all other
variables held constant.

Increase in Effect on Profit
2022 - Interest rate for the year
Basis points JD
Currency
JD 50 6,421
uUsD 50 -
Decrease in Effect on Profit
Interest rate for the year
Basis points JD
Currency
JD (50) (6,421)
uUsD (50) -
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Increase in Effect on Profit
2021 - Interest rate for the year
Basis points JD
Currency
JD 50 7,788
usD 50 1,029
Decrease in Effect on Profit
Interest rate for the year
Basis points JD
Currency
JD (50) (7,788)
usD (50) (1,029)

Equity price risk -

The following table shows the sensitivity of profits and losses and fair value reserve as a result of the
expected reasonable changes on stock prices, with all other variables held constant:

Change in Effect on Profit Effect on
2022 - index for the year Equity
(%) JD JD
Amman and Palestine Stock Exchange 10 - 134,075
Change in Effect on Profit Effect on
2021 - index for the year Equity
(%) JD JD
Amman and Palestine Stock Exchange 10 - 127,449

If there is a negative change in the index, the effect is equal to the change noted above in the opposite

direction.

Credit risk -

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or a
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company seeks to limit its credit risk with respect
to banks by only dealing with reputable banks and setting credit limits for majority of customers and

monitoring outstanding receivables.

The largest customer accounts for 49% of sales for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: The

largest customer 60%).
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Liquidity risk -

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not meet its obligations under its financial liabilities

based on contractual maturity dates.

The Company monitors its liquidity by ensuring availability of funds to meet its obligations at their

maturity date.

The table below summarizes the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted financial liabilities at 31
December 2022 and 2021 based on contractual payment dates and current market interest rates:

Less than 3to12

3 months months Total
31 December 2022 JD JD JD
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 275,007 268,488 543,495
Due to related parties - 64,709 64,709
Total 275,007 333,197 608,204

Less than 3to12

3 months months Total
31 December 2021 JD JD JD
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 238,448 260,400 498,848
Due to related parties - 54,406 54,406
Total 238,448 314,806 553,254

Currency risk -

Most of the Company's transactions are in Jordanian Dinar and U.S. Dollar. The Company’s
transactions in U.S. Dollar have negligible currency risk since the Jordanian Dinar is fixed against the

U.S. Dollar (USD 1.41 for each one JD)

-22-



JORDAN VEGETABLE OILS INDUSTRIES
PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING COMPANY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

(23)  FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities.
Financial assets consist of cash and bank balances, accounts receivable, financial assets at fair value
through OCI, and some other current assets. Financial liabilities consist of accounts payable, due to

related parties and some other current liabilities

The Company uses the following methods and alternatives of valuating and presenting the fair value
of financial instruments:

— Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

— Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
JD JD
First Level First Level
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income:
Stocks 1,340,754 1,274,489

(24) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in business
conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31
December 2022.

Capital comprises paid in capital, statutory reserve, fair value reserve and retained earnings, and is
measured at JD 6,935,073 as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: JD 6,848,198).
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(25) STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of
the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new
accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation
and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) which was
issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance
and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees
and financial instruments with discretionary participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.
The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting model for insurance contracts that is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely
based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of IFRS 17 is the
general model, supplemented by:

e A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee
approach),
¢ A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and must be applied
retrospectively. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15
on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17. This standard is not applicable to the Company.

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the
requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:
¢ What is meant by a right to defer settlement?
e That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period,
e That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right,
o Thatonly if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would
the terms of a liability not impact its classification.
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
must be applied retrospectively. The Company is currently assessing the impact the amendments will
have on current practice and whether existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a definition of
‘accounting estimates. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after
the start of that period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

In February 2021, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making
Materiality Judgements, in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality
judgements to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide
accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose
their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies
and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
with earlier application permitted. Since the amendments to the Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on the application of the definition of material to accounting policy information,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments to determine the impact they will
have on the Company’s accounting policy disclosures.
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